



# San Mateo County Youth Commission



**In light of COVID-19, this meeting will be held virtually.  
Members of the public are welcome to join the Virtual Zoom Meeting:**

Join by Device: <https://smcgov.zoom.us/j/94451610751>  
Join by Phone: **+1 669 900 6833**, Meeting ID: **944 5161 0751**

## **WORKGROUP MEETING** **Agenda**

Thursday, January 13, 2022  
6:00 PM - 8:00 PM

### **Community Agreements**

1. Representation
2. Equality
3. Integrity
4. Unity
5. One mic, one voice
6. Respect all people
7. Engaged members
8. Leadership and empowerment
9. Flexible and open to other perspectives
10. Collaborate with other organizations
11. Understand value of diverse lived experiences
12. Include youth in conversations that impact them
13. Keep needs of youth in San Mateo County above personal interests
14. Question decisions and resist complacency
15. Commitment to policies that foster diversity, equity, and inclusion

### **1. Call to Order**

### **2. Roll Call**

### **3. Public Comment**

Members of the public may address the commission on youth related issues and concerns that are not currently on the agenda. The public is welcome to speak on Agenda items throughout the meeting. Please use the raise hand feature if you would like to make a public comment. If you are attending by phone, you may press \*9 to raise your hand.

### **4. Approve Agenda (Action)**

### **5. Approve December 16, 2021 Meeting Minutes (Action)**

### **6. Resolution to Continue Virtual Meetings (Action)**

### **7. Presentation: JobTrain**

Larry Moody, Employment Specialist & Job Developer

8. **Review Draft Youth Commission Bylaws**

9. **Committee Worktime**

10. **Committee Report Outs**

11. **Announcements**

12. **Adjournment**

**Next Meeting:** January 27, 2022

Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a regular or special meeting of the Youth Commission are available for public inspection. Those records that are distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting are available for public inspection at the same time they are distributed to all members, or a majority of the members of the Commission. Those public records are available to be sent electronically by emailing [edallman@smcgov.org](mailto:edallman@smcgov.org).

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE AND THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: The meetings of the Youth Commission are accessible to individuals with disabilities. Contact Ellie Dallman at [edallman@smcgov.org](mailto:edallman@smcgov.org) as soon as possible prior to the meeting, if (1) you need special assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in this meeting; or (2) you have a disability and wish to receive the meeting notice, agenda packet or other writings that may be distributed at the meeting in an alternative format. Notification in advance of the meeting will enable the Youth Commission to make reasonable arrangements to ensure full accessibility to this meeting and the materials related to it.



# San Mateo County Youth Commission



**In light of COVID-19, this meeting was held virtually.**

## **REGULAR MEETING** Minutes

Thursday, December 16, 2021  
6:00 PM - 8:00 PM

### **Community Agreements**

1. Representation
2. Equality
3. Integrity
4. Unity
5. One mic, one voice
6. Respect all people
7. Engaged members
8. Leadership and empowerment
9. Flexible and open to other perspectives
10. Collaborate with other organizations
11. Understand value of diverse lived experiences
12. Include youth in conversations that impact them
13. Keep needs of youth in San Mateo County above personal interests
14. Question decisions and resist complacency
15. Commitment to policies that foster diversity, equity, and inclusion

### **1. Call to Order**

### **2. Roll Call**

See attendance doc

### **3. Public Comment**

Members of the public may address the commission on youth related issues and concerns that are not currently on the agenda. The public is welcome to speak on Agenda Items throughout the meeting.  
No Public Comment

### **4. Approve Agenda (Action)**

Motion passed no abstentions

### **5. Approve Minutes (Action)**

Motion passed no abstentions

### **6. Announcements**

### **7. Group Activities**

- Bingo
- Scavenger Hunt
- Scategories

## **8. Adjournment**

### **Next Meeting: January 13, 2022**

Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a regular or special meeting of the Youth Commission are available for public inspection. Those records that are distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting are available for public inspection at the same time they are distributed to all members, or a majority of the members of the Commission. Those public records are available to be sent electronically by emailing [edallman@smcgov.org](mailto:edallman@smcgov.org).

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE AND THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: The meetings of the Youth Commission are accessible to individuals with disabilities. Contact Ellie Dallman at [edallman@smcgov.org](mailto:edallman@smcgov.org) as soon as possible prior to the meeting, if (1) you need special assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in this meeting; or (2) you have a disability and wish to receive the meeting notice, agenda packet or other writings that may be distributed at the meeting in an alternative format. Notification in advance of the meeting will enable the Youth Commission to make reasonable arrangements to ensure full accessibility to this meeting and the materials related to it.

## RESOLUTION NO.

### RESOLUTION FINDING THAT, AS A RESULT OF THE CONTINUING COVID-19 PANDEMIC STATE OF EMERGENCY DECLARED BY GOVERNOR NEWSOM, MEETING IN PERSON FOR MEETINGS OF THE SAN MATEO COUNTY YOUTH COMMISSION WOULD PRESENT IMMINENT RISKS TO THE HEALTH OR SAFETY OF ATTENDEES

---

**WHEREAS**, on March 4, 2020, the Governor proclaimed pursuant to his authority under the California Emergency Services Act, California Government Code section 8625, that a state of emergency exists with regard to a novel coronavirus (a disease now known as COVID-19); and

**WHEREAS**, on June 4, 2021, the Governor clarified that the “reopening” of California on June 15, 2021 did not include any change to the proclaimed state of emergency or the powers exercised thereunder, and as of the date of this Resolution, neither the Governor nor the Legislature have exercised their respective powers pursuant to California Government Code section 8629 to lift the state of emergency either by proclamation or by concurrent resolution in the state Legislature; and

**WHEREAS**, on March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 that suspended the teleconferencing rules set forth in the California Open Meeting law, Government Code section 54950 et seq. (the “Brown Act”), provided certain requirements were met and followed; and

**WHEREAS**, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed AB 361 that provides that a legislative body subject to the Brown Act may continue to meet without fully complying with the teleconferencing rules in the Brown Act provided the legislative

body determines that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, and further requires that certain findings be made by the legislative body every thirty (30) days; and,

**WHEREAS**, California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) and the federal Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”) caution that the Delta variant of COVID-19, currently the dominant strain of COVID-19 in the country, is more transmissible than prior variants of the virus, may cause more severe illness, and that even fully vaccinated individuals can spread the virus to others resulting in rapid and alarming rates of COVID-19 cases and hospitalizations (<https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/variants/delta-variant.html>); and,

**WHEREAS**, the CDC has established a “Community Transmission” metric with 4 tiers designed to reflect a community’s COVID-19 case rate and percent positivity; and,

**WHEREAS**, the County of San Mateo currently has a Community Transmission metric of “substantial” which is the second most serious of the tiers; and,

**WHEREAS**, the Commission has an important governmental interest in protecting the health, safety and welfare of those who participate in its meetings; and,

**WHEREAS**, in the interest of public health and safety, as affected by the emergency caused by the spread of COVID-19, the Commission deems it necessary to find that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, and thus intends to invoke the provisions of AB 361 related to teleconferencing.

**NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY DETERMINED AND ORDERED** that

1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct.
2. The Commission finds that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.
3. Staff is directed to return no later than thirty (30) days after the adoption of this resolution with an item for the Commission to consider making the findings required by AB 361 in order to continue meeting under its provisions.
4. Staff is directed to take such other necessary or appropriate actions to implement the intent and purposes of this resolution.

\* \* \* \* \*

## PROCEDURAL RULES OF THE SAN MATEO COUNTY YOUTH COMMISSION

### ***Rule 1 Authority and Purpose.***

These Procedural Rules of the San Mateo County Youth Commission (hereafter the YC) are adopted pursuant to the San Mateo County Board of Supervisors Resolution No. 69276, which sets forth the Standing Rules for County Boards, Commissions, and Advisory Committees. These Rules of Procedure shall be submitted to the County Counsel for review and approval, and thereafter filed with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.

### ***Rule 2 Members.***

#### **Section 2.1 General.**

The ~~YC Youth Commission~~ was created by the Board of Supervisors Resolution No 57588 adopted September 21, 1993, amended by Resolution 59609 adopted August 22, 1995, ~~and~~ amended by Resolution 65027 adopted January 15, 2002, and amended by Resolution XXXXXX adopted [INSERT DATE]. The members, the members' terms, and the members' duties are as set forth in the Board of Supervisors resolutions, and in the event of an inconsistency, such Board Resolutions, as such resolutions may be amended from time to time, will take precedence over these Rules.

#### **Section 2.2 Number.**

The YC may consist of up to 25 voting members; provided that such members shall be increased if necessary to be consistent with the Board's Resolutions.

#### **Section 2.3 Appointment.**

All members shall be appointed by the Board of Supervisors of San Mateo County (hereafter the Board) and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board.

Adopted XXX1.24.19

**Section 2.4 Length and Limitation of Terms.**

Members shall serve one-year terms of office up to four terms. At the conclusion of a term, a member may be reappointed to another one-year term. -A member's term of office will expire in less than one year in the event that, during the period of such term the member reaches the age of 21. -Individuals are eligible for appointment to the YC Youth Commission beginning at age 13.

**Section 2.5 Dates of Terms.**

Terms are for a fixed period. They shall begin on July 1<sup>st</sup>, and end on June 30<sup>th</sup>. The fact that a member may be appointed or begin their his or her service after July 1<sup>st</sup> will not extend the member's term beyond June 30<sup>th</sup> of the following year.

**Section 2.6 Resignation.**

Any member may resign effective on giving written notice to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, unless the notice specifies a later time for their his or her resignation to become effective. The acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. -As a courtesy, the YC Commission Chairperson and the YC Commission staff should be notified.

**Section 2.7 Removal.**

Any member appointed by the Board may be removed from office at any time for any reason, given or not given by the Board.

**Section 2.8 Vacancies.**

Any vacancy on the YC, however created, may be filled for the unexpired term by appointment by the Board.

**Section 2.9 Action by the Board.**

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the qualifications, term, and other conditions of YC membership shall be as determined from time to time by action of the Board.

*Adopted XXX1.24.19*

**Section 2.10 No Individual Authority.**

Individual Commissioners may not present themselves as representing the YC Commission, unless approved, in advance, by the YC Commission. At no time should Commissioners approach (as a representative of the Commission) any elected official or County Department Head or County Division Director prior to receiving approval by the Commission.

**Rule 3 Elected Positions and Officers Executive Board.**

**Section 3.1 Elected Positions Officers.**

~~The Officers shall be Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, and Annual Project Chairs. Members may hold up to two officer positions in one term. The officers shall be elected annually, and shall serve for one year terms, for a maximum of two years in the same position. The YC shall vote~~ All officers are expected to attend Executive Board meetings.

~~Section 3.~~ **elect the YC2** Chair, ~~and~~ Vice Chair, ~~and~~ Secretary. .

The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the full YC. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall take on all duties ~~and of the Chair and shall have all of the~~ authority of the Chair. The Chair and Vice Chair shall be elected annually at the last meeting of the preceding year.

~~Section 3.3~~ **Secretary.**

The Secretary shall take notes at all meetings of the full YC. In the absence of the Chair and Vice Chair, the Secretary shall take on all duties ~~and of the Chair and shall have all of the~~ authority of the Chair. The Secretary shall be elected annually by the second public meeting. In the absence of the Secretary, any member of the YC may volunteer to take notes during the course of a meeting of the full YC.

**Section 3.4 Social Media Officer ~~Annual Project Chairs.~~**

Adopted XXX1.24.19

~~The Social Media~~~~Each Annual Project~~ Chair shall be appointed by~~preside at his or her~~ respective project committee meeting. ~~If the YC Chair is absent or unable to lead YC~~ communications.

~~act at his or her meeting, the members present~~

### **Section 3.5 Ad-Hoc Committee Officers.**

~~Each Ad-Hoc Committee shall appoint a Chair, select one of the committee members to~~ act as Vice Chair, and Secretary for their committee~~who, while so acting, shall have all of~~ the authority of the Chair. ~~The Annual Project Chairs shall be elected~~ by the second public meeting of the year. Each Ad-Hoc Committee Officer shall preside at their respective project committee meeting.

### **Section 3.5 Executive Board**

The Executive Board shall consist of the YC Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, Social Media Chair, and Ad-Hoc Subcommittees Officers. All officers are expected to attend Executive Board meetings. Commissioners may hold up to two officer positions in one term. The officers shall be elected annually, and shall serve for one-year terms, for a maximum of two years in the same position.

### ***Rule 4 Meetings.***

#### **Section 4.1 Regular, Workgroup and Special Meetings.**

The date, time and place of ~~R~~regular meetings shall be established by YC staff. The YC shall hold at least ~~11~~~~6~~ ~~R~~regular meetings each calendar year. Workgroup meetings shall be held monthly to allow Ad-Hoc Subcommittees to work on their projects. Special meetings shall be held at any time and place at the call of the Chair or a majority of the authorized number of members.

#### **Section 4.2 Open and Public.**

Meetings shall be open and public and all persons shall be permitted to attend, except for closed sessions, all as required and permitted by applicable law.

Adopted XXX1.24.19

### **Section 4.3 Notice.**

Notice of meetings shall be as specified in the Government Code §54950 *et seq* (the “Brown Act”).

### **Section 4.4 Attendance and Participation.**

Members must attend the ~~Regular~~regular meetings of the YC and all committees, whether standing or ad-hoc, to which they are appointed and shall contribute their time and ~~special~~ abilities as may be required for the benefit of the YC. If a Member is unable to attend a meeting, they must give staff 24-hour notice in advance of the meeting. Failure to attend a meeting without ~~first~~ notifying the YC ~~staff~~Staff shall, ~~except in cases of emergency or extreme hardship,~~ be treated as an unexcused absence, necessitating a conversation with the staff that could result in removal from the YC. If a member has more than two (2) consecutive absences at ~~R~~regular meetings, and/or four (4) absences over the course of the term, they may be subject to removal, which is done by Executive Board recommendation to the Board of Supervisors.

### **Section 4.5 Quorum.**

A majority of the voting members of the YC shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any ~~R~~regular or ~~S~~special meeting of the YC. -A majority of the voting members of a committee present shall similarly constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of a committee.

### **Section 4.6 Meeting Agendas.**

The YC ~~s~~Staff shall prepare an agenda for every meeting, which shall set forth a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting and the time and location of the meeting. Each agenda for a ~~R~~regular meeting shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to address the YC directly on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the YC. At least 72 hours before a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted ~~at~~ the Hall of Justice and

*Adopted ~~XXX1.24.19~~*

Records ~~or~~; at ~~another County location~~ designated ~~public location~~ ~~by the Clerk of the Board~~. No action shall be taken at a ~~R~~Regular meeting on any item not appearing on the posted agenda; provided, however, that the Members may take action on items of business not appearing on the posted agenda if: (1) the YC determines by a majority vote that an emergency situation exists under California Government Code section 54956.5; (2) the YC determines by a two-thirds vote, or, if less than two-thirds of the Members are present, by a unanimous vote of those Members present, that there is an immediate need to take action and that the need to take the action came to the attention of the YC subsequent to the posting of the agenda; of (3) the item was included in the posted agenda for a meeting of the YC occurring not more than five calendar days prior to the date action is taken on the item, and at the prior meeting the item was continued to the meeting at which action is being taken. At least 24 hours before a ~~S~~Special meeting, the ~~staff~~Staff shall cause the agenda for the meeting to be posted with the call and notice of the meeting at the Hall of Justice and Records, or, as determined by duly adopted resolution of the YC, any other location that is freely accessible to members of the public. No business not set forth in the posted agenda shall be considered by the YC at such ~~s~~Special meeting.

#### **Section 4.7 Conduct of Business.**

The items on the agenda shall be considered in order unless the Chair shall announce a change in the order of consideration. Unless an agenda item identifies a particular source for a report, the Chair or YC Staff shall present the item, after which members may comment, and then the topic shall then be open to public comment upon recognition of the speaker by the Chair.

#### **Section 4.8 Resolutions.**

All official acts of the YC shall be taken and authorized by vote or by resolution, adopted on motion, duly made, seconded and adopted by vote of the Members.

#### **Section 4.9 Voting.**

Adopted ~~XXX1.24.19~~

All resolutions to the YC shall be adopted by the affirmative vote of the majority of the Members, constituting a quorum, present and voting except as otherwise provided by law or these procedural rules.

**Section 4.10 Disqualification from Voting.**

A Member shall be disqualified from voting on any resolution relating to a transaction in which ~~they have~~~~he or she has~~ a financial interest, as required by law and the Conflict of Interest Policy of the YC.

**Section 4.11 Minutes.**

A designated person on each committee and for the full YC shall prepare the minutes of ~~their~~~~his or her~~ respective meeting. The minutes shall be an accurate summary of the YC's or committee's consideration of each item on the agenda and an accurate record of each action of the YC. At a subsequent meeting, the minutes shall be submitted for approval by a majority vote of Members in attendance at the meeting covered by the minutes. When approved, the minutes shall be kept with the record of proceedings of the YC.

**Section 4.12 Closed Sessions.**

The YC shall meet in closed session only as permitted by applicable law. The YC shall report the actions taken at closed session to the public as required by applicable law. A closed session minutebook shall be established and maintained for minutes of all closed sessions which shall reflect only on the topics of discussion and decisions made at the session. The closed session minutebook shall be kept confidential and not be a public record and shall be available only to the Members, except as otherwise required by applicable law.

**Section 4.13 Public Records.**

All documents and records of the YC, not exempt from disclosure by applicable law, shall be public records under the California Public Records Act (California Government Code Section 6250 et seq).

Adopted ~~XXX1.24.19~~

***Rule 5 Committees and Liaisons.***

**Section 5.1 Standing Committees.**

The standing committee shall be the Executive Board. -Executive Board shall meet monthly and be made up of the YC Officers.

**Section 5.2 Ad--Hoc Committees.**

The YC may by vote or by resolution, from time to time, create ad--hoc committees and appoint the members to such committees as it deems necessary to carry out its purposes.

Examples of ad--hoc committees include, but are not limited to, YC Annual Project Committees which may vary from year to year; Youth Conference Planning Committee and Procedural Rules Committee. Every Member is expected to serve on an Annual Project Committee and is required to attend all meetings of their assigned Annual Project Committee. -Members will determine Annual Project Committee placement in September. -Each Member is expected to remain on theirhis or her Annual Project Committee for the duration of that term.- All members of an Annual Project Committee will contribute to the development and implementation of a corresponding project. -Said project will be determined by a majority vote of the Annual Project Committee members. There may be no more than sixfive ad-hoc Annual Project Committees in a given year.

In addition to mandatory placement on one Annual Project Committee, YC members may serve on additional ad--hoc committees. Membership to additional ad--hoc committees shall be on a volunteer basis and assigned at the direction of the Chair during a Rregular meeting of the YC.

**Section 5.3 Meetings.**

Regular meetings of the committees shall be held at such times and places as are determined by the Chair(s) of each committee. Special meetings may be held at any time

*Adopted XXX1.24.19*

and place as may be designated by the Chair, YC Staff, or the majority of the members of the committee. A majority of the authorized number of the members of the committee of shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

**Section 5.4 Open and Public.**

Meetings of the standing committees will be open and public.

**Section 5.5 Boards and Commissions, and County Initiative Liaisons.**

YC Members have the option of being placed on a San Mateo County Board, Commission, or Initiative as determined by YC Staff, YC Members, and County Boards and Commissions. YC Members are to serve as Members of the specified Board, Commission or Initiative pursuant to the San Mateo County Board of Supervisors Resolution No. 69276, unless otherwise provided by law. Every Liaison may be given an Adult Ally from their respective placement.

**Rule 6 *Volunteers.***

The YC may have volunteers participate in the ad-hoc committees.

Volunteers are encouraged to attend monthly Regular meetings. Attendance at monthly workgroup meetings is highly recommended since that is when committees do the majority of their project work. However, attendance at either meeting is not mandatory. Refer to the YC calendar of meetings.

The YC committee Chair or other designated member will have an introductory meeting with the volunteer to bring them up to date on the group's progress and upcoming projects. Volunteers will be assigned tasks/duties (taking into consideration their time commitment) and are encouraged to provide input during committee discussions.

Regardless of attendance at workgroup or other committee meetings, volunteers shall follow through with task deadlines and communicate with the entire committee either at meetings or via email.

At public YC meetings, volunteers are welcome to ask questions and provide input during public comment, however they may not vote on any YC action items.

**Rule 7 *Conflict of Interest Policy.***

Adopted XXX1.24.19

A Member of the YC shall not make, participate in making, or in any way attempt to use the Member's position to influence a decision in which the Member knows or has reason to know the Member has a financial interest.

***Rule 87 Annual Work Plan.***

The YC will develop an annual work plan and submit an annual report for the Board of Supervisors or present to the Board of Supervisors a year-end summary.

***Rule 98 Oath of Office.***

Before beginning service, each Member will take an oath of office, to be personally administered by an officer of the County authorized to administer such oaths. ~~Members may take the oath of office, by appointment only, after July 1.~~ A group swearing in and oath of office will also occur at the annual retreat. If a Member is unable to attend the retreat to be sworn in, they ~~shall have 5 business days to~~ make arrangements to take the oath of office thereafter. Failure to take the oath of office may result in removal by the Board.

***Rule 109 Amendment of Procedural Rules.***

These Rules may be amended only by a resolution of the YC at any meeting of the YC.